REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
INSTANT TICKET GAMES

AND RELATED SERVICES RFP #2019-05
RESPONSES TO WRITTEN QUESTIONS (Q&A #1)
February 12, 2020
This list of questions and responses #1 (Q&A#1) is being issued to clarify certain information contained in the above named Request for Proposals (RFP).  The statements and interpretations of Contract requirements, which are stated in the following responses are not binding on the State, unless the State expressly amends the RFP.  Nothing in the State’s responses to these questions is to be construed as agreement to or acceptance by the State of any statement or interpretation on the part of the entity asking the question as to what the Contract does or does not require.  Some questions have been edited for brevity and clarity, and duplicate questions may have been combined or eliminated.

The following are questions submitted pursuant to the RFP and the State Lottery and Gaming Control Agency’s (MLGCA) responses to those questions:
1. QUESTION: Key Information Summary Sheet, Questions Due Date and Time, Page iii; Would the Lottery consider defining a specific end date to questions for this procurement to provide vendors with at least 14 calendar days between the Lottery providing responses to vendor questions and the submission date for proposal? This request to have at least 14 calendar days between the last Lottery response to Vendor questions provides all vendors with the necessary time to finalize their responses to provide the Lottery with the most effective and consistent proposal responses.
ANSWER: Potential offerors are advised to submit their questions to the MLGCA as early as possible in order to ensure that answers may be provided to offerors with adequate time to incorporate that information into their proposals.  The “Questions Due Date and Time” is the cut-off date beyond which no further questions will be accepted by the MLGCA.  Offerors are encouraged, to the extent possible, not to wait until this cut-off date to submit their questions.  The Procurement Officer, based on the availability of time to research and communicate an answer, shall decide whether an answer can be given before the Proposal Due Date and Time.  If the Procurement Officer deems a question to be substantive and the answer to which may have a significant impact on the preparation of Offerors’ proposals, the Procurement Officer may determine at that time that an extension of the Proposal Due Date and Time is appropriate.
2. QUESTION: Key Information Summary Sheet, Questions Due Date and Time, Page iii; Would the Lottery please extend the proposal submission date to accommodate all vendors by providing them at least 14 calendar days between the last Lottery response to Vendor submitted questions ( now Feb 26, 2020) and the submission date ( today proposals are due March 4, 2020). Almost all lottery procurements in the U.S. accommodate a two week period between Lottery responses to the last submitted Vendor questions thus allowing ample time for vendors to prepare their complex, technical responses as per the Lottery’s latest information change/guidance. This requested timeframe ensures that all vendor responses are the most effective and consistent with the RFP requirements /amendments and the Lottery’s response to vendor questions. 
ANSWER: The Proposal Due Date and Time as stated in the RFP, which is March 4, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. Local Time, will not be extended.  See Answer to Question #1 above.
3. QUESTION: Section 2.4.4.5  Proprietary and Patented Processes, Pages 10-11; Section 2.4.4.5  states that “The Contractor shall make available for use by the MLGCA, and include in the base price for Instant Tickets, all currently held proprietary and/or patented printing and production processes, patented game plays, or ink technologies, and copyrights, Service marks or trademarks owned by the Contractor.”

In the interest of providing the MLGCA the most economical base ticket price schedule possible, and toward the objective of the MLGCA only paying for the quantity of Patented/proprietary processes actually used, would the MLGCA re-consider this provision and permit Contractors to provide base prices with patented/proprietary processes at an additional charge? By modifying this requirement , Contractors will be able to provide the most cost efficient instant ticket base price for the MLGCA because Contractors will not have to estimate/project patented/proprietary numbers of games per year.

ANSWER: Section 2.4.4, paragraph 5, has been revised to delete the phrase “,and include in the base price for Instant Tickets,”.  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
4.
QUESTION: Section 2.4.5, Ticket Artwork, Page 11; This section states “A color key (proof) made from the mechanical artwork” shall be provided to the Lottery.” Most vendors have moved away from color key proofs and provide contract proofs for sign-off that are developed digitally for process color sign-off along with PMS ink chips for PMS spot colors.  Will the Lottery confirm that a physical contract proof developed via a digital format and which includes the ticket back along with the ticket front representing process colors is acceptable?

ANSWER: A contract proof would be acceptable, provided that the MLGCA receives a physical proof that accurately depicts ink colors as they will be printed in execution.
5.
QUESTION: Section 2.4.8, #22, Shipping Box, Page 16; Will the Lottery accept industry standard shipping boxes that use test criteria to Edge Crush Test strength of 32?
ANSWER: No, the MLGCA will not substitute the 32 edge crush test strength box for the 275 pound (minimum) test shipping box as required in the RFP.  
6.
QUESTION:  Section 2.4.8, #23, Skids, Page 16; Will the Lottery accept a skid size of 40” wide x 48” long as is currently accepted and provided under the existing contract? 

ANSWER: Yes, the MLGCA will accept 40” wide x 48” long skids and this requirement has been revised.  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
7.
QUESTION: Section 4.3.2, Page 43; This requirements states that “the answers to all questions that are not clearly specific only to the requestor will be distributed via the same mechanism as for RFP amendments and posted on eMMA.” Would the Lottery amend this section to remove the reference to “ not clearly specific to only the requestor” as this could possibly lead to a situation wherein one vendor may receive communication from the Lottery regarding an inquiry and other vendors , not aware of the question/response, would thus potentially not be on equal footing regarding the proposal response requirements.
ANSWER: This section is contained in the standard Statewide Request for Proposals Template and will not be changed.  It is the policy of the MLGCA to distribute and post answers to all questions.  However, the MLGCA shall have the right at its sole discretion to not distribute/post any question it may deem appropriate such as, for example, a question that contains confidential or otherwise sensitive information that applies only to the requestor.  The Procurement Officer will make a determination on a case by case basis if any question is specific only to the requestor.
8.
QUESTION: Section 5.3.1, Page 62; The RFP states: “All pages of each Proposal volumes shall be consecutively numbered from beginning (Page 1) to end (Page “x”). In order for vendors to more easily facilitate production of the RFP response, would the Lottery allow vendors to consecutively number pages within each section of the response?
ANSWER: Pages may be numbered consecutively within each Section only if the page numbering contains a section designation, such as A-1, A-2, B-1, B-2, C-1, C-2, etc.  Each page must be numbered such that it is uniquely identified.
9.
QUESTION: Section 5.3.3.2, Anti-counterfeiting and Anti-Alteration Features, Page 64; In this section we must provide reports in their entirety, made by independent laboratories made during the past year. The reports we obtain from independent laboratories are customer-specific and are therefore considered confidential. Will the Lottery accept redacted copies of these reports whereby we remove any reference to the specific lottery jurisdiction?  

ANSWER: Information in an Offeror’s proposal that is deemed to be confidential should be identified as such in accordance with RFP Sections 4.8 and 5.3.2.2.  Additionally, redaction only of references to a specific lottery jurisdiction would be acceptable.
10.
QUESTION: Section 5.3.3.4 Ticket Samples and Laboratory Reports, Page 64; 
Will the Lottery confirm that Vendors must submit a total of two (2) written testing results from independent laboratories for two (2) of the six (6) sample games. All other referenced written test results shall be from an independent laboratory or internal test reports (remaining four (4) out of the six (6) required sample game written reports).

ANSWER: That is correct.  The last sentence of this section incorrectly states “For the remaining three (3) sample games . . .”.  This sentence has been revised to read “For the remaining four (4) sample games, the written test results shall be either from an independent laboratory or an internal test report.”  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
11.
QUESTION: Section 5.3.8, Financial Capability, Page 70; Due to the length of the financial statements required in Section 5.3.8, would the Lottery allow all financial statements to be submitted on USB?
ANSWER: Yes, submission of Financial Statements by electronic media such as a USB or CD is an acceptable format.
12.
QUESTION: Section 6.4, Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria, Page 74; Would the Lottery please provide a more detailed evaluation criteria that better demonstrates the evaluation scoring for each section of the proposal as outlined in Sections 6.4.1.1 through 6.4.1.9?

ANSWER: In accordance with COMAR 21.05.03.02 (2), the Request for Proposals shall include “The evaluation factors and an indication of the relative importance of each evaluation factor, including price.”  As stated in Section 6.4 of the RFP “The criteria to be used to evaluate each Technical Proposal are listed below in descending order of importance.”  That is, criterion no. 1 is more important than criterion no. 2, criterion no. 2 is more important than criterion no. 3, etc.  Technical Proposals are evaluated for technical merit and ranked.  Numerical “scoring” is not used.
As stated in Section 6.7.3 of the RFP, “In making this most advantageous Proposal determination, technical factors will receive equal weight with financial factors.”

13.
QUESTION: Attachment M Contract, Section 4.6; Contractor Incentive Program, Page 100; Will the Lottery please provide a detailed outline of the calculation for the “Net Revenue” figure it intends to use in determining  what  the Vendor’s 1% Contractor Incentive payment will be.
ANSWER: The proper calculation is Net Revenue for the current fiscal year less the average Net Revenue for the immediately prior three fiscal years.  The result is multiplied by 1%.  In RFP Appendix 1 –Abbreviations and Definitions, Item FF., the term “Net Revenue” is defined as “Dollar amount of net Instant Ticket sales less commissions paid to Retailers (commissions paid to Retailers include but are not limited to sales commissions, cashing fees, and agent bonuses) less prize expenses less Administrative Expenses and bad debt expenses.”
The CIP is calculated as follows:



Net Revenue

FY 2016
$100,597,770

FY 2017
$109,672,526

FY 2018
$117,140,020
Total 
$327,410,316
Average
$109,136,772

FY 2019
$131,477,684

Increase
$22,340,912
1% CIP
$223,409
14.
QUESTION: Attachment M “Contract,” Section 4.6; Contractor Incentive Program, Page 100; Attachment M, Section 4.6 describes a 1% Contractor incentive based on 3 year Net Revenue averages, if the General Assembly “appropriates funds.”
a) Have funds been appropriated by the General Assembly to support the Contractor Incentive Program for the first year of the Contract ?
b) Is the MLGCA’s current Primary instant ticket contractor eligible for the C.I.P., as described in this RFP ?
ANSWER: a) A State contract is generally in its entirety subject to the appropriation of funds by the General Assembly.  (See RFP Attachment M- Contract, Paragraph 16)  The MLGCA anticipates at this time that all necessary funding for this contract will be available.
b) The current Instant Ticket Games and Related Services Primary Contract (#2013-01P) provides for payment of a similar CIP to the Primary Contractor.
15.
QUESTION: Section 5.4, Volume II, Financial Proposal, Attachment B-2; The Lottery has asked that any features or services that a potential Contractor would like to offer for consideration by the Lottery be added after the last item, which is item 41. Given that some features or services will not be related to a ticket order, or cannot be expressed as a flat rate per-square-inch of ticket area, will the Lottery allow pricing for such items to be expressed according to the most appropriate unit of measure (per hour, flat fee, etc.)?
ANSWER:  Yes, prices for Additional Business Enhancements should be expressed as the most appropriate unit of measure for each Enhancement being proposed.
16.
QUESTION: Would the MLGCA please provide a copy of the current instant ticket price schedules from all current instant ticket contractors?
ANSWER: The MLGCA anticipates that this information will be provided in a forthcoming separate attachment.
17.
QUESTION: Future Goods and Services – Right to Negotiate New Products and Services for this Contract and Their Costs; Will the Lottery agree to the inclusion of the NASPL standard language provided below that permits both the Contractor and the Lottery to expand the current services under this contract by mutual agreement for both new products/service requirements and their respective fees?

REFERENCE: Guide to the Standard Request For Proposal (RFP) Template, Section 3.23.2, Deliverables and Services Not Originally Defined.

NASPL Standard RFP Language: "Changes and enhancements that exceed RFP and contractually specified requirements (and which are not otherwise accommodated for in this RFP or by the pricing method in the RFP) will have the terms and price negotiated and approved by both parties, or be subject to a separate agreement. These include, but are not limited to, categorically different service obligations, and new technology enhancements."

ANSWER: No, this language will not be added to the RFP.  See RFP Attachment M – Contract, Paragraph #43.  New Products/Services may be added to the Contract in the future by Modification of the Contract which would be agreed upon by both parties.
18.
QUESTION: Financial Instant Ticket File (#2019-05); The excel pricing file Category A #4 and Category B #3 both refer to Additional Business Enhancements in Section 2.5.9 in the Scope of Work, which doesn’t seem to exist. Should these refer to Additional Business Enhancements in Section 5.3.3.10 in the Proposal Format?
ANSWER: Yes, Attachment B-2: Financial Proposal Form Sections A.4 and B.3, both of which are for Additional Business Enhancements, incorrectly reference RFP Section 2.5.9.  The correct reference for both A.4 and B.3 should be to RFP Sections 2.4.22 and 5.3.3.10.  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
19.
QUESTION: 2.4.2 Site Visits for Game Production/Press Check; Can the MLGCA confirm if this requirement refers to 10 representatives maximum across all 6 trips, or 10 representatives for each of the 6 trips equaling 60 total representatives per year? Currently, the Contract allows for 6 trips per year with a maximum of two representatives per trip for a total worth of $2,000 per trip ($12,000 per year) and they rollover.

ANSWER: The first sentence of the second paragraph in Section 2.4.2 has been revised to read “The Offeror shall provide travel, lodging, meals and related expenses both to and from the site visit(s) for up to two (2) representatives of the MLGCA per site visit.”  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
20.
QUESTION: 2.4.5 Ticket Artwork; This requirement states “If the MLGCA runs into difficulty receiving or opening these files via email, the contractor shall send artwork on CD-ROM or flash drive via overnight delivery.” Is the MLGCA open to amending this requirement to include secure file transfer process as a method of sending artwork?
ANSWER: The secure file transfer would be acceptable, however, if there is an issue with a file, then CD or Flash drive via overnight delivery may still be required.
21.
QUESTION: 2.4.8 Instant Ticket Requirements for All Games, #30. Ticket Compatibility; Can the MLGCA confirm that its acrylic dispensers can support oversized tickets?
ANSWER: The MLGCA’s current acrylic dispensers used in Retailer locations do not support oversized Instant Tickets.  
22.
QUESTION: 2.4.8 Instant Ticket Requirements for All Games, #31. Required Standard Ticket Features, Item k) Insert Cards; Can the MLGCA confirm whether ‘Instant Ticket length in inches as a decimal’ also include 10.0?

ANSWER: Yes, “10.0” should also be included.  The section labeled Back: in 2.4.8.31.k) should read: “Black, border to bleed, with game name, game number, price, Instant Ticket length in inches as a decimal (2.5, 4.0, 6.0, 8.0, 10.0, 11.0), and quantity of Instant Tickets per Book.” See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
23.
QUESTION: 2.5.3, E.; Can the MLGCA clarify how many licenses would be needed for any software provided to MLGCA?
ANSWER: At this time the MLGCA estimates that up to six (6) licenses for MLGCA users shall be required, however, this number may change during the contract term as required by the MLGCA.
24.
QUESTION: 2.6 Delivery Services to Retailers: Primary Contractor Only, 2.6.9; Can the MLGCA confirm if the Contractor can use existing warehouse facilities and confirm whether this requirement refers to disaster recovery purposes? Can the MLGCA clarify if the secure distribution facilities are required to be in-state?
ANSWER: The requirement in section 2.6.9 refers to a shipping and distribution center to be used for daily outgoing orders, not a disaster recovery site.  As such, it must be located within the State of Maryland.  UPS operates the site currently being used, but the Contractor or its subcontractor could operate an alternative site.
25.
QUESTION: 2.6 Delivery Services to Retailers: Primary Contractor Only, 2.6.12; Can the MLGCA confirm the number and frequency of replenishments?
ANSWER: For CY 2019 the MLGCA shipped 141,567 orders and 1,987,978 packs as replenishment orders.
26.
QUESTION: 3.5 Liquidated Damages – Other than MBE, 3.5.5 Damages Imposed, I. Responsibility for Contractor Errors; Can the MLGCA confirm would consider to be “errors or omission by the Contractor”?
ANSWER: The term “errors and omissions” is considered to be self-explanatory. As clarification, this category is intended to protect the MLGCA against actions by the Contractor not otherwise enumerated in RFP Section 3.5.5 that result in lost sales or lost goodwill.  Errors/Omissions can refer to loss of game integrity where consumer appeal and/or playability are compromised. This can include but is not limited to registration issues (both with game art and variable imaged data), ticket/book miscuts, and hard scratch or migration of varnish materials.

27.
QUESTION: 3.16.1 No-Cost Extensions; Can the MLGCA clarify whether this requirement includes game printing, or does it refer solely to marketing fund use?
ANSWER: This provision would apply to the total contract requirements and amounts.
28.
QUESTION: 6.5 Financial Proposal Evaluation Criteria – This section of the RFP current states “Primary Contract: The Financial Proposals of all Qualified Offerors (see Section 6.7.2.D) will be ranked form the lowest (most advantageous) to the highest (least advantageous) price based on the “Total Proposal Price” within the stated guidelines set forth in this RFP and as submitted on Attachment B-2: Financial Proposal Form. Prices listed in A.4 and B.3, Additional Tasks, will not be considered in the basis of Award.” However, A.3 corresponds to Additional Business Enhancements and not to “Additional

Tasks” as stated in the requirement above. Can the MLGCA clarify if the above section should refer to A.3 instead of A.4? Can the MLGCA also confirm if both A.3 and A.4 will not be considered in the basis of the award?
ANSWER: Correct, prices proposed in both sections A.3 and A.4 for the Primary Contract will not be considered in the basis of award.  RFP Section 6.5, last sentence, has been revised to read “Prices listed in A.3 Additional Tasks and A.4 Additional Business Enhancements will not be considered in the basis of award.”  See Amendment #1 to the RFP.
29.
QUESTION: Attachment M. Contract, 4. Consideration and Payment, 4.6; Can the MLGCA confirm whether this section will begin at the start of the Contract award or if it will apply to the previous contract holder? Is it the intention that program will start 3 years after Contract Award?
ANSWER: The CIP will be effective upon contract award.  After the first complete contract year, the CIP will be calculated as described in Attachment M #4.6 and the Contractor will be eligible for the CIP depending upon its performance during the first Contract year. The prior contractor would be eligible for a final CIP payment based upon its performance during the final year of the prior contract.
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